




































 

 

MICHIGA N BUREAU OF ELECT IONS 

RICHARD H. AUST IN BUILDING ●  1ST  FLOOR ●  430 W. ALLEGAN ●  LANSING, MICHIGA N 4 8918 

M i ch i gan.gov/E l e c t i o ns  ●  (517) 335-0170 

September 14, 2022 

Committee to Elect Geof Perrot 

22661 Brookdale St. 

Farmington, MI 48336     

 
Re: Stacey v. Committee to Elect Geof Perrot 

Campaign Finance Complaint No. 2021-09-32-47  

 

Dear Committee to Elect Geoff Perrot,  

 
The Department of State (Department) has finished investigating the campaign finance 

complaint filed against you by Jennifer Stacey on September 29, 2021. The complaint alleges 
you violated the Michigan Campaign Finance Act (MCFA or Act) by distributing campaign 

literature without the required “paid for by” statement and by making expenditures totaling more 
than $1,000 on an election without filing the required campaign statements.  
 

You responded to the complaint on February 1, 2022. In your response you indicated that neither 
you, nor the Committee to Elect Geof Perrot, authorized, financed, published, or contributed to 

the door hanger mentioned in the complaint. You indicate that it is your understanding that a 
Farmington resident came forward publicly as the author of the door hanger.   
 

Ms. Stacey was notified of your response on June 13, 2022, but did not provide a rebuttal.  
 

In Michigan, an expenditure is "a payment, donation, loan, or promise of payment of money or 
anything of ascertainable monetary value for goods, materials, services, or facilities in assistance 
of, or in opposition to, the nomination or election of a candidate, the qualification, passage, or  

defeat of a ballot question, or the qualification of a new political party." MCL. 169.206(1 ).  
Persons, including candidates, making expenditures in excess of $500 are required to register as 

a committee under the act. MCL 169.224(1); MCL 169.203(4). Committees are required to  
submit campaign statements detailing their expenditures. MCL 169.226(1)(b). If a committee's 
total expenditures total less than $1,000 over the course of an election cycle, the committee may 

be eligible for a waiver excusing it from submitting reports. MCL 169.224(5). However, if  a  
committee excused from submitting campaign statements under the waiver provision at any point 

exceeds $1,000 in expenditures for a given campaign cycle, that waiver is revoked and the  
committee is required to file said statements. A failure to file two or more required campaign  
statements is a misdemeanor " punishable by a fine of not more than $1,000.00 or imprisonment 

for not more than 90 days, or both." MCL 169.233(8).  
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On November 29, 2021, the Committee to Elect Geof Perrot filed a post-election campaign 

statement with the Oakland County Clerk’s office that reported in-kind contributions for yard 
signs and printing charges during the 2021 calendar year. As such, the Department finds that the 
committee filed all necessary statements; therefore, the Section 33 allegations contained in the 

complaint are dismissed. 
 

In addition to reporting requirements, the MCFA and corresponding administrative rules also 
require a person who produces printed material that relates to an election include the phrase  
"Paid for by [name and address of the person who paid for the item]." MCL 169.247(1), R 

169.36(2). A knowing violation constitutes a misdemeanor offense punishable by a fine of up to 
$1,000.00, imprisonment for up to 93 days, or both. MCL 169.247(6). 

 
The Department concludes that you have submitted sufficient evidence to rebut the possibility 
that you violated the MCFA by failing to include the “Paid for by” information on printed 

materials.  Specifically, the Department finds your explanation that an individual independent of 
yourself or the Committee to Elect Geof Perrot created and produced the door hanger mentioned 

in the complaint credible. Additionally, Ms. Stacey did not rebut your statement by providing 
any evidence indicating that you or your committee were responsible for the production or 
distribution of the materials.  As such, the Department dismisses the Section 47 allegations 

contained in the complaint. 
 

The Department’s file on this matter is now closed and it will take no further action. 
     

Sincerely, 

 

 
 
Adam Fracassi, Regulatory Manager 

Regulatory Section 
Bureau of Elections 

Michigan Department of State 
 
 

 
c: Jennifer Stacey 


